
AGENDA 

CITY of THE DALLESr 
313 COURT STREF; 

THE DALLES, OREGON 97058 

(541) 296-5481 ext 112'.5 
Planning Departmern'. 

CITY OF THE DALLES PLANNING COMMISSION 
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

313 COURT SREET 
THE DALLES, OREGON 97058 

CONDUCTED IN A HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE MEETING ROOM 

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 5, 2015 
6:00 PM 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL 

III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES-September 3, 2015 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items not on the Agenda) 

VI. DISCUSSION -2015 LUDO Amendment Discussion on RV Park regulations. 

IX. STAFF COMMENTS 

X. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS/QUESTIONS 

XI. FUTURE MEETING- November 19, 2015 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 



DRAFT Memorandum 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

November 5, 2015 

Planning Commission 

Richard Gassman, Planning Director 

RV Park Discussion 

CITY of THE DALLES 
313 COURT STREET 

THE DALLES, OREGON 97058 

(541) 296-5481 ext. 1125 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

The City of The Dalles does not have an RV Park. The City gets many inquiries, especially in the 
summer time, from visitors who are seeking a place to stay with their RV. For some time the City 
has been encouraging property owners to consider constructing an RV park. The City even reduced 
the minimum size requirement from 5 acres to 1 acre as a way of facilitating a new park. However, 
so far, we still do not have an RV Park. 

Recently two different property owners have contacted the Planning Department asking about 
constructing an RV Park. Each of these property owners was looking at putting in the RV Park on 
land they owned that was zoned RM. The LUDO currently limits RV Parks to certain commercial 
zones. The purpose of this discussion item is to look at possible changes to the LUDO which might 
help property owners be able to construct an RV Park. 

The RV Park regulations are contained in Chapter 12 of the LUDO. To find where RV Parks are 
allowed, you have to look in each of the zones in Chapter 5. Currently RV Parks are allowed 
outright only in the CG-Commercial General, and CR-Commercial Recreational zones, see LUDO 
sections 5.060.020 A. 21, and 5.080.020 A. 11. They are also allowed conditionally in the CLI zone, 
see LUDO section 5.070.030 C. Property in these zones, especially the CG zone, can be difficult to 
find and is potentially more valuable for other uses. 

We would like to brainstorm some ideas on how the City might expand potential sites. Here are 
some ideas for discussion: 

1. Allow RV Parks in other zones, including the RM and RH zones; 
2. Allow RV Parks conditionally in any zone, similar to the treatment given Community 

F acili ti es; 
3. Eliminate the minimum lot size; 
4. Modify other standards. 



CITY OF THE DALLES PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

CALL TO ORDER 

Thursday, September 3, 2015 
City Hall Council Chambers 

313 Court Street 
The Dalles, OR 97058 

Conducted in a handicap accessible room 
6:00 PM 

Chair Lavier called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 
Bruce Lavier, Dennis Whitehouse, Chris Zukin, John Nelson, Sherry Dufault, Jeff Stiles 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 
Mark Poppoff 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 
Planning Director Richard Gassman, Senior Planner Dawn Marie Hert, Administrative Secretary 
Carole Trautman 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
It was moved by Whitehouse and seconded by Stiles to approve the agenda as submitted. The motion 
carried unanimously; Poppoff absent. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
It was moved by Dufault and seconded by Whitehouse to approve the August 6, 2015 minutes as 
submitted. Lavier, Whitehouse, Zukin, Nelson and Dufault approved, Stiles abstained, Poppoff 
absent. The motion carried. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 

OUASI-JUDCIAL HEARINGS: 

A. CUP 177-15; Design LLC; Request: Approval of a conditional use permit for a new data 
storage facility higher than generally allowed. Property is located at 4350 River Trail Way, The Dalles, 
Oregon, and is further described as 2N 13E 21 t.l. 700 and 2N 13E 21 t.1. 800. Property is zoned "I" -
Industrial District. 

Chair Lavi er read the rules for a public hearing and asked the Commissioners if they had any ex-parte 
contact, bias or conflict of interest that would hinder them from making an impartial decision on the 
application. None were noted. 
Planning Commission Minutes 

September 3, 2015 Page I of 5 



Lavier opened the public hearing at 6:05 PM. 
Director Gassman presented the highlights of the staff report. He reported that one comment was 
received by Wasco County Commissioner Hege (Exhibit 1). Gassman read aloud the design standards 
for the Commercial General zone, Section 5.060.050, and suggested the Commission could require a 
condition of approval that would include similar language to Section 5.060.050. 

Gassman reminded the Commission that the CUP was to consider height only; the applicant had not 
turned in a full scale site plan review. Gassman said the site plan review could go through the 
Planning Commission upon request, and at that time Hege's comments could be addressed. 

Director Gassman pointed out that the· CUP criteria indicated location, size and design should be 
compatible with the surrounding neighborhood. He said it would be difficult to determine if the 
building would have an adverse affect on neighboring properties, because currently there was nothing 
around the proposed site. Therefore, staff recommended approval with conditions, because of the lack 
of adverse impact, and this proposed project was what The Dalles needed. Gassman said the request 
was for 108 feet, and some equipment would go to 126 feet. The structure would be over 55 feet from 
the Riverfront Trail, as required, and landscaping would also be placed in the 55 ft. area to help buffer 
the bulk of the building from Riverfront Trail. 

*Note: City Attorney Parker joined the meeting at 6:05 PM. 

Nelson asked what the plans were for access to the area. Gassman said he knew of no other 
development to the south or west. Any subsequent development would take the size of the building 
into- consideration. There would need to be an access from the west, possibly from the Taylor Lakes 
area, but the applicant would need to take that up with the property owner, Port of The Dalles. 

** Note: Commissioner Poppoff joined the meeting at 6:07 PM. 

Testimony 
Proponents: 
Dave Karlson, PO Box 1718 White Salmon, Washington stated he was the Google site manager for 
The Dalles. Karlsson indicated they were in the preliminary stages of project design, and they were 
hoping for feedback on their initial renderings. The purpose for the building was to increase Google 
operations in The Dalles. He reported that the new building would be four stories to maximize land 
space. 

Nelson asked if the footprint of the new structure would be larger than building 2. Mr. Karlson said 
the footprint would be larger, and the structure would be taller, possibly double the size of building 2. 
He said the intent was to blend the design of the building with the surroundings. Zukin asked if the 
requirement of locating the structure at least 50 feet from Riverfront Trail would be agreeable with 
them. Karlson said the design was already set at more than the 50 foot buffer requirement, with 
landscaping. 

Sarah Viemeister, 713 West 18th Street, The Dalles, Oregon stated that she supported the project. She 
had evidenced Google's continued support to the community through her affiliation with Home at Last 
and the FinancialAid Department at Columbia Gorge Community College. 

Planning Commission Minutes 

September 3, 2015 Page 2 of 5 



Scott Hege, 6580 Martin Road, The Dalles, Oregon, stated that he supported Director Gassman's 
comments that The Dalles needed to optimize its remaining industrial-zoned land by using more 
height. In reference to his written comment, Hege said he realized Google would do all that they could 
to fit in, he thought it was a great project. He asked the Commission to support the application. 

Opponents: 
None 

There was discussion amongst staff and Commission on whether or not the Planning Commission 
could request that the site plan review come back to them, but only to discuss design. City Attorney 
Parker said the Commission could ask the applicant what their design intentions were and if they 
would be willing to use similar design language as found in Section 5. 060.050. Mr. Karlson said 
Design LLC would want to use similar design language and make it a collaborative effort. 

Chair Lavier closed the public hearing at 6:46 PM. 

Deliberation: 
Stiles said he drove around surrounding areas from the perspective of the proposed height of the new 
structure. After he made his observations, he felt the height of the building would not be an issue 
from any surrounding area. 

Poppoff said he felt the request was not unreasonable for the Industrial zone. 

It was moved by Zukin and seconded by DuFault to approve CUP 177-15, Design LLC, based on the 
findings of fact of the staff report, to include the six conditions of approval as listed in the staff report, 
and an additional condition of approval #7 as follows: "The facility will use design elements, color, 
materials, landscaping, setbacks, and other features that would be similar to design standards found in 
Section 5.060.050 of the Land Use and Development Ordinance to lessen the visual impact of the 
facility and ensure that the facility is compatible with the surrounding landscape." The motion carried 
unanimously. 

B. CUP 178-15; Robert A. Richards/The Dalles Seventh Day Adventist Church; Request: To 
site and construct a new 216 seat Seventh Day Adventist Church with a small radio station. Property is 
located in the 500 block of Veterans Drive, The Dalles, Oregon, and is further described as IN 13E 01 
t.1. 101. Property is zoned "RL'' - Low Density Residential District. 

Chair Lavier read the rules for a public hearing and asked the Commissioners if they had any bias, ex­
parte contact or conflict of interest on the application. None were noted. 

Lavier opened the public hearing at 6:53 PM. 

Senior Planner Dawn Marie Hert highlighted the staff report. She commented that the pedestrian 
walkway from the structure's main entrance to the sidewalk was not included in the original site plan. 
That hard surface pedestrian walkway would be required. Hert stated that staff recommended approval 
with 14 conditions of approval. 

Whitehouse asked if the plans were for storm water usage or swale. Hert indicated that because of the 
size of the parking lot, an oil/water separator would be installed that would go into the City's system. 

Planning Commission Minutes 

September 3, 2015 Page3 of 5 



Hert reported that the City Transportation System Plan called for connections or extensions of streets 
in the vicinity of the applicant's parcel, and it could be connected in the future, if any additional 
partitioning occurred. 

Testimony 
Proponents: 
Robert A. Richards, 2108 Griffin A venue, Enumclaw, Washington, stated that he was in support of the 
project. He explained that the congregation had no church facility; they had been meeting in a school. 
He felt this project was good for them and for the community. 

Chair Lavi er asked if the church intended on having a school at any time. Mr. Richards said the 
church had no such plans at this time. 

Nelson asked if the church had plans for the western portion of the property. Mr. Richards said no 
plans at this time. Nelson asked if Mr. Richards, as their architect, was comfortable with the 14 
conditions of approval. Richards affirmed that he and the church were agreeable to the conditions. 

Whitehouse asked where the antenna for the radio station would be placed. Richards said it would be 
located on the property, and it would be approximately 62 feet high. 

Opponents: 
None 

Questions: 
Shawn Skiles, 504 Veteran's Drive, The Dalles, Oregon asked if the church would be built on the east 
side of the property. Mr. Richards indicated it would be built in the northeast comer of the property. 
Mr. Skiles said he respected the rights of the church to build on their property, and he had two 
requests. He asked that the church consider minimizing the impact of blocking the view of the 
neighboring residents, and to ensure that the contractor would keep control of dust, weeds and trash. 
Chair Lavier indicated that the dust, weed and trash control issues were mentioned in the conditions of 
approval. 

Whitehouse asked what the requirements were for the storm swale. City Engineer McCabe reported 
that the storm water pond must hold a 25 year storm. There is a storm in Columbia View Drive and 
Veterans Drive. McCabe said the church could build a storm retention pond then build an overflow. 

Taner Elliott, 397 Summit Ridge Drive, The Dalles, Oregon asked if a church could be built in a 
residential zone. Senior Planner Hert advised that a church facility was allowed in the residential zone 
as a conditional use permit. Churches are considered a community facility. 

Chair Lavi er closed the public hearing at 7 :08 PM. 

Deliberation: 
Stiles stated that he saw the project as a good use of the land. Poppoff said it was a good design. 

It was moved by DuFault and seconded by Poppoff to approve CUP 178-15; Robert Richards based on 
the findings of fact in the staff report, and to include the recommended conditions of approval. The 
motion carried unanimously. 

Planning Commission Minutes 

September 3, 2015 Page4 of 5 



RESOLUTION 

A. It was moved by Whitehouse and seconded by Zukin to approve P.C. Resolution #545-15, CUP 
#177-15 for Design LLC as amended during the public hearing portion of the meeting. The motion 
carried unanimously. 

B. It was moved by Whitehouse and seconded by Nelson to approve P.C. Resolution #546-15, CUP 
# 17 5-15 for The Dalles Seventh Day Adventist Church as proposed by staff and to include staff's 
recommended conditions of approval. The motion carried unanimously. 

STAFF COMMENTS 
City Engineer Dale McCabe asked for a Planning Commissioner to volunteer to serve on the Public 
Advisory Committee for the Transportation System Plan update. The volunteer would be appointed by 
the Mayor. Three Commissioners volunteered Poppoff, Lavier and DuFault; the Mayor will choose 
one to be the Planning Commission representative. 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
None 

NEXT MEETING 
October 1, 2015 

ADJOURNMENT 
Chair Lavi er adj oumed the meeting at 7 :26 PM. 

Respectfully submitted by Administrative Secretary Carole Trautman 

Bruce Lavier, Chairman 

Planning Commission Minutes 

September 3, 2015 Page 5 of 5 



From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Dick; 

Nolan Young 
Friday, August 28, 2015 8:43 AM 
Richard Gassman 
Tyler Stone; Stephen Lawrence; 'Scott Hege' 
RE: FW: PC Agenda Pkt 090315 

EXHIBIT 1 

Please share these comments with the planning Commission. It is a good idea to pay attention to the Visual 
impact. 

~11~ 
City Manager 
City of The Dalles 
313 Court St 
The Dalles, OR 97058 
(541) 296-5481 ext. 1118 
nyoung@ci.the-dalles.or.us 
From: Scott Hege (mailto:scotth@co.wasco.or.us] 
sent: Friday, August 28, 2015 12:40 AM 
To: Nolan Young 
""'~: Tyler Stone; Stephen Lawrence 

bject: Re: FW: PC Agenda Pkt 090315 

Thanks Nolan. 

I would like to suggest another condition of approval something like this: 

Applicant must demonstrate that the requested height variance will not result in adverse visual impacts. 
The facility will use design elements, color, materials, landscaping, setbacks, and other features to lessen 
the visual impact of the facility and ensure that the facility is compatible with the surrounding landscape. 

The words crune mostly from their CUP application, but I like the idea of making it a condition of approval so 
that these issues MUST be addressed with the final facility design and construction. Thoughts on this idea? I 
really don't want to have a huge, flat, monotone wall of the largest building in town welcoming people to The 
Dalles as they round the comer on I-84. I am hoping for a nicely designed, interesting large building 
welcoming people to our Business Friendly community!! :-) 

Thanks, 

Scott 

C bu, Aug 27, 2015 at 3:54 PM, Nolan Young <nyoung@ci.the-dal1es.or.us> wrote: 

FYJ 
1 




